Wiltshire Council Where everybody matters

MINUTES

Meeting:	DEVIZES AREA BOARD
Place:	Bromham Social Centre, New Road, Bromham SN15 2JB
Date:	26 March 2012
Start Time:	6.30 pm
Finish Time:	8.40 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:

Alexa Smith (Democratic Services Officer), on 01249 706610 or alexa.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council's website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors

Cllr Laura Mayes (Chairman), Cllr Jeffrey Ody, Cllr Jane Burton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Nigel Carter, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Lionel Grundy OBE and Cllr Liz Bryant

Wiltshire Council Officers

Mandy Bradley (Service Director), James Cawley (Service Director), Peter Hanson (Divisional Highway Manager), Karen Jones (Senior Project Manager), Richard Rogers (Community Area Manager) and Alexa Smith (Democratic Services Officer)

Town and Parish Councillors

Devizes Town – Ted East, Peter Evans, Sue Evans, Simon Fisher (Deputy Town Clerk), Margaret Taylor and Ray Taylor Bishops Cannings – Jenny Combe and Rob Jones Bromham – A W Blackman, Jean Collens, PS Paget and Pam Thomas Cheverell Magna – Chris Hall, Ann Lumb and Lynda Wearn Easterton – Chris Saunders Erlestoke – Dean Moore Etchilhampton – Mervyn Woods Great Cheverell – Paul Stevens Potterne – Pat Straw Roundway – Chris Callow, Rebekah Jeffries, Rick Rowland and Albert Wooldridge Rowde – Peter Allfrey, Jan Barber and Jackie Bawden

Partners

Wiltshire Police – PC Richard Barratt Wiltshire Police Authority – Cllr Chris Humphries Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service – Scott Taylor and Mike Franklin Devizes Community Area Partnership – M Nightingale, Doug Roseaman, Tony Sedgwick, Paula Winchcombe and Noel Woolrych Gazette and Herald – Jill Crooks Wiltshire Heritage Museum – David Dawson

Total in attendance: 87

<u>Agenda</u> Item No.	Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision
1.	Welcome and Chairman's Announcements
	Peter Paget, Chairman of Bromham Parish Council, welcomed Devizes Area Board to the Bromham Social Centre.
	Councillor Mayes then drew attention to the Chairman's announcements included in the agenda pack. Youth Advisory Groups were being established in all community areas by June 2012. The groups would play a key role in improving the co-ordination of positive activities for young people in local areas.
	A review of mini recycling sites and household summer opening hours was taking place following the success of the new improved waste and recycling collection services provided in Wiltshire. To view and comment on proposed changes, please complete an online questionnaire at www.wiltshire.gov.uk/consultations or call 0300 4560102 for a paper copy. Please respond by 28 May 2012.
	Wiltshire Council was seeking views on existing polling districts and polling places. For more information on proposed changes, please see the Wiltshire Council website, where information has been sorted into area boards for ease of reference. Forms can be completed online or downloaded from the website and submissions must be received by 25 May 2012.
	Councillor Mayes had met with the Devizes Town Council to discuss the town council taking over responsibility from Wiltshire Council for the Market Square. She had met with senior officers at Wiltshire Council to progress this and would keep the area board updated on progress.
	She thanked those involved for the excellent display stand available to view before the meeting regarding improvements to the local bus service.
	Councillor Mayes then spoke about the Devizes Contact Centre, who were looking for volunteers to help welcome families to the centre and provide background support for two hours a month. The centre was also in need of a co-ordinator due to forthcoming retirement of the existing co-ordinator. Please contact Lisa Green on 01380 726817 or <u>lisa.green100@live.co.uk</u> if you would be interested in either opportunity.
2.	Apologies for Absence
	Apologies were received from Richard Harris (Locality Team Leader, Youth Service), Jo Partt (Bromham Parish Council) and Ian Thomas (Wiltshire Police).
3.	<u>Minutes</u>

	The minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2012 were approved and signed as a correct record.					
4.	Declarations of Interest					
	Councillor Burton declared a prejudicial interest in agenda item 10b, a Community Area Grants Scheme application from First Stages, as a member of Devizes Town Council. The person who started First Stages was also a member of Devizes Town Council. Councillor Burton did not speak or vote on the application.					
5.	Neighbourhood Plans					
	Carolyn Gibson, Principal Planning Officer, provided information about neighbourhood plans and the Wiltshire Core Strategy. This included the main points below:					
	 What was a neighbourhood plan – a new way for communities to plan for the places where they lived and worked When a neighbourhood plan was needed – Wiltshire Council was putting together guidance notes on this, Carolyn emphasised a neighbourhood plan was optional and not compulsory and intended as a permissive tool to enable development Where the Wiltshire Core Strategy fitted in – a neighbourhood plan must be in general conformity with the Wiltshire Core Strategy The document would become a statutory plan and used to make decisions Alternatives to neighbourhood plans – for example Village Design Statements. 					
	This was followed by a short question and answer session, which covered the following:					
	 Wiltshire Council would pick up the significant cost of producing a neighbourhood plan where it was deemed appropriate As a statutory plan, a neighbourhood plan would be of different weight to alternative measures, however if agreed these alternative measures would still be taken into account when decisions were made An officer had been requested to attend an annual parish council meeting to discuss planning issues – this request had been referred to senior management. An issue was the number of interested parish councils across the county Where a number of parishes were involved in the production of a plan, a multiple approach would be appropriate, with one agreed point of contact. 					
6.	Output from 'Devizes Forward' Event					
	Tony Sedgwick, Chairman of Devizes Community Area Partnership, provided					

	information abut the community plan. He thanked those who had taken part in the survey and in the community planning event held on 6 February 2012. The community plan had been two years in the making and was now issued and available to view and download on the Devizes Community Area Partnership website. A shorter version of the document was being worked on at present.
	Tony went through findings on the main themes of the plan; countryside and land based, culture and leisure, community area safety, the economy and business, health and social care, housing and built environment and transport. He then explained that the next steps regarding taking forward the plan had already been made. Projects had been identified and cross theme and cross Partnership project teams were being formed.
	<u>Decision</u> Councillor Mayes would meet with the heads of the Devizes Community Area Partnership theme groups twice a year to discuss key aims and priorities.
7.	Older People's Accommodation Strategy
	Karen Jones, Senior Project Manager, presented proposals for older people's accommodation in the Devizes area.
	 The main points covered by the presentation were: Demographic characteristics – the number of older people within Devizes was to increase by 49.6% by 2026 Current provision within Devizes
	 Sheltered housing and extra care housing – these were the same type of accommodation, however extra care housing involved a larger range of communal facilities, was fully telecare enabled and had support provided twenty four hours a day
	 The Older People's Accommodation Development Strategy – a ten year flexible plan
	 In Devizes need had been identified for a 60 unit extra care housing scheme on Browfort and an 80 bedroom care home on Horton Road providing nursing and specialist dementia care and replacing Southfields and Anzac House facilities
	 This represented a substantial improvement to older people's accommodation in Wiltshire.
	The presentation was followed by a short question and answer session. The main points raised were that:
	 The future use of Southfields and Anzac House were under discussion Conversations held across the county had found that sheltered housing was not an attractive option – in particular older people wanted larger properties where they could have visitors to stay With regards to pricing, a balance had to be reached between the

-	
	 developer's need to make a profit and provision required in the local area A range of options would be available, with units to rent or to buy Wiltshire Council would not own these units, but work with the housing association concerned through the working group to respond to the individual needs of customers A key feature would be reserving the housing for elderly people The Chairman explained that a working group would be set up under the area board and to please contact Alexa Smith, Democratic Services Officer, if you would like to become involved. <u>Decision</u> Devizes Area Board would establish a working group to formulate and implement the Devizes development proposals regarding older people's
	accommodation and report back to the area board.
8.	Parish Stewards
	Peter Hanson, Divisional Highways Manager, presented information about highways maintenance issues, including parish stewards.
	The local team at Melksham and Devizes delivered services to the parishes. Simon Green and Richard Green were the local parish stewards. Monthly, three and six monthly driven safety inspections of the highway network were held. Local resources available to the stewards included a gully tanker, road mender machine, masonry gang, cyclic maintenance gang and unimogs. There were also visiting resources, such as a JCB.
	A new scheme of provision was being trialled in the north. This was a multi- functional team who would work across a larger area.
	Peter explained that if you would like any work done in your parish, please contact CLARENCE on 0800 232323 (a number which was available 24 hours a day).
	 Peter then answered several questions, with the information covered as below: Utility companies incurred a charge if their work overran – this was to encourage the companies to complete on time Wiltshire Council hedge cutting had not yet started for this year In the short term (before the introduction of the new multi-functional team) existing parish stewards would continue to follow the dates publicised on the calendars that had been issued for when they were working in each parish Cars for sale on the roadside represented an obstruction to the highway. Where possible they would be followed up, however a problem was that card often did not remain in the same place for very long The clearance of ditches was in general the responsibility of the adjacent land owner.

9.	Partner Updates
	a. A written update from Wiltshire Police was circulated at the meeting, please find attached to the minutes. The officer who attended the meeting was prepared to read out the report, but due to a shortage of time was unable to do so.
	b. The written update from Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service was noted. Scott Taylor then provided information about the Integrated Risk Management Plan. The risks that Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service faced were changing, from a reduction in the budget, through the increased housing within Wiltshire to the type of incidents that were responded to. A service review was underway and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service welcomed public opinion.
	For this, you could register as a stakeholder and receive a survey to complete, please call: 01380 731114, you could view the consultation document and comment using the following email address: <u>consultation@wiltsfire.gov.uk</u> or surveys were available to complete at the meeting.
	c. The written update from Devizes Community Area Partnership was noted. The Partnership and the Association of Kennett Passengers were commended for their display stand regarding the local bus service.
	d. Councillor Gamble reported on behalf of the Community Area Transport Group. A pedestrian crossing at Windsor Drive was now open. A new bus stop had been installed at Estcourt Street. There would be new road markings in and out of the town at London Road. Gates had been put in place at Roundway village. The Partnership were commended for their work on the cycle route network. Reduced speed limits would come into force in Bromham and Rowde in April. A review of unclassified and C class roads was now underway and two roads had been put forward by the area board on the basis of collision rates.
	Councillor Gamble then spoke about high vehicle diversions.
	<u>Decision</u> The area board resolved that vehicles that were too high to get under the railway bridge at Littleton Pannell should be directed away from the route by appropriate signage including that which was currently in place in Devizes owing to the unsuitability of the present diversion route. The area board did not propose to divert other HGVs from the A360, so the impact on the other routes should be small.

	e. The written update from the parish forum was noted.					
	Late Police report					
10.	Area Board Funding					
	Councillors were asked to consider the Community Area Grants report and make recommendations on the applications received.					
	<u>Decision</u> Devizes and District Association for the Disabled were awarded £597 to purchase new chairs in their centre.					
	<u>Reason</u> The application met the 2011/12 grant criteria and the chairs currently being used had deteriorated over time and become dangerous with several accidents.					
	<u>Decision</u> First Stages were awarded £985 towards the purchase of technical equipment for performances.					
	Reason The application met the 2011/12 grant criteria and the group currently hired technical equipment when performing, however this was expensive.					
	<u>Decision</u> All Saints Church, All Cannings, were awarded £1,338.50 (ten per cent of the total cost of the project) towards the repair of their church clock, on condition that the remainder of the funding for the project was secured.					
	<u>Reason</u> While the grant application met the 2011/12 grant criteria, concerns had been raised regarding securing the full amount of funding required for the project and its wider community benefit.					
11.	Member Initiatives					
	Councillors were asked to consider two member initiatives, which had been brought to the area board by Councillor Mayes.					
	<u>Decision</u> Devizes Area Board would ring fence up to £5,000 to pay for costs of having a jousting tent at the Queen's Jubilee event on 1 May in Salisbury.					
	<u>Decision</u> Devizes Area Board would carry over any remaining budget to 2012/13 for youth provision, including a potential skate park and BMX facility, and to					

	fund further Jubilee celebrations.
12.	Evaluation and Close. The Chairman thanked those who were able to attend the meeting. The next area board meeting would take place on Monday 28 May 2012 at 6.30 pm, with refreshments available from 6.00 pm, at Devizes Sports Club.

This page is intentionally left blank

Crime and Community Safety Briefing Paper Devizes Community Area Board Date of Meeting 26rd March 2012



1. Neighbourhood Policing

Team Sgt: Sgt Ian Thomas

Town Centre Team

Beat Manager – PC Adam Hall PCSO – Paula Yarranton PCSO – Lucy Sainsbury PCSO – Kelly Watts

Rural North Team Beat Manager – PC Emma Reed PCSO – Wendy Leat PCSO - Fiona Marno

Rural South Team Beat Manager – PC Gareth Milnes PCSO – Nina Marsh PCSO - Fiona Marno

2. NPTs - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities:

Up-to-date details about Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, current priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our Wiltshire Police Website.

Visit the new and improved website at: www.wiltshire.police.uk

3. Police Authority Representative: Mr Christopher Humphries

Please contact via Wiltshire Police Authority Tel. 01380 734022 or <u>http://www.wiltshire-pa.gov.uk/feedback.asp</u>

4. Performance and Other Local Issues

Despite being recently named as the safest county in the country, we realise that there is still much work to do. We are aware of the impact which theft from motor vehicles and non-dwelling burglaries has on victims. These offences cause a great deal of upset and inconvenience to victims and Wiltshire Police is committed to doing all it can to ensure that these offences are investigated robustly and offenders brought to justice. To help with this a team of dedicated officers from 'Operation Pinnacle' has been tasked with attending and investigating these offences. This is a three month operation. Through officer attendance they have been able to maximise evidence gathering opportunities, leading to some significant arrests and subsequent charges which is a really great start. I would like to take this opportunity to remind everyone of the need to take suitable, simple, crime prevention measures to safeguard their property. This is as simple as not leaving tempting items on display, ensuring they are locked away securely.

On a similar vein a recent operation was held across the county to deal with metal theft offences. This is a nationwide problem, ranging from lead being stolen from church roofs to copper cabling from railway lines.

Wiltshire Police - 17 Page 5 pf public service

On Monday 30 January a day of action against metal theft was held involving multiple agencies which achieved some excellent results and positive news coverage, which you may have seen. A number of scrap metal dealers were targeted within Wiltshire and this day of activity sends a very positive message to our public whilst also ensuring that criminals know that we are aware of their activity and will deal with them robustly. Ten arrests were made across the Force area, over £10,000 in cash seized, as well as a vast quantity of stolen cable.

On a more local note, I am sad to report that after a relatively quite festive period, there have been a number of instances of criminal damage within the town centre and The Avenues area of the town. I suspect that this mainly involves those returning from the town centre in the early hours having been drinking. A number of shop windows have been broken and car wing mirrors damaged. I am pleased to say though that a number of arrests have been made. Local officers have stepped up patrols at these times to deal with these, and other alcohol related offences with visits to licensed premises to ensure compliance with the licensing legislation.

March sees the end of the current set of NPT priorities. At the beginning of March your local officers will be busy out in the community doing their consultations. The areas we are concentrating on this quarter are Rowde, Erlestoke and Estcourt Street/The Green in Devizes. This is your opportunity to tell us what your problems are and help us set our priorities. Once set they will be visible on the NPT website at <u>www.wiltshire.pnn.police.uk</u>. I am pleased to say that we now have more officers trained in the use of the Police Exhibition Vehicle. I am looking forward to this being used more across the Devizes area, reaching out to the villages and rural communities as well as its monthly presence in Devizes Market Place. Also on the website you can see details of when officers will be at public events and meetings for you to approach them and discuss any issues or concerns that you may have.

	Crime				Detections		
Devizes	March 2010 - February 2011	March 2011 - February 2012	Volume Change	% Change	March 2010 - February 2011	March 2011 - February 2012	
Violence Against the Person	316	279	-37	-12%	50%	50%	
Dwelling Burglary	56	52	-4	-7%	11%	13%	
Criminal Damage	282	352	70	25%	13%	16%	
Non Dwelling Burglary	114	155	41	36%	3%	2%	
Theft from Motor Vehicle	88	99	11	13%	2%	1%	
Theft of Motor Vehicle	20	22	2	10%	0%	27%	
Total Crime	1399	1510	111	8%	25%	24%	
Total ASB	1254	1395	141	11%			

Wiltshire Police are compared against a group of 8 most similar forces. Wiltshire Police have performed in line with peers and better than average for All Crime and better than peers for Violent Crime in the previous 12 month period (Mar 2011 - Feb 2012)

*Total Crime comprises all Crime Groupings listed above and also includes Theft and Handling, Fraud and Forgery, Robbery and Sexual Offences ** Detections include both Sanction Detections and Local Resolution

Inspector Ron Peach 26th March 2012 Area Commander